DOUGLAS COUNTY, NV Rec:\$40.00

V 2024-1009672 07/02/2024 12:45 PM

Total:\$40.00 RICHARD C ROWE

Pgs=21

APN#	00183343202410096720210211
Recording Requested by/Mail to:	SHAWNYNE GARREN, RECORDER
Name: ELK POINT County Club Go clarks on Law Address: 1210 5, Valley Dr Suk 202	
City/State/Zip: Las Vegas, NV 89 102	_ \ \
Mail Tax Statements to:	
Name:	
Address:	
City/State/Zip:	
Amended By Laws of Ell	Spoint CC40A, Inc
Title of Document (required)	
N 465 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	
Please complete the Affirmation Statement	
The undersigned hereby affirms that the document subm	The state of the s
DOES contain personal information as required by law:	
Affidavit of Death – NRS 440.380 (1)(A) & NRS 40.525 (5) Mi Other NRS (state specific law)	llitary Discharge – NRS 419.020 (2)
-OR-	
	1416 1 1 1 1 1 1
I the undersigned hereby affirm the attached document, includin for recording does NOT contain the personal information of any	
Richard Raire	
Signature	
Richard Rowe	
Printed Name	
This document is being (re-)recorded to correct document #_ <u>2024</u> ~	( <u>60</u> 9651_, and is correcting
adding Exhibit 1	

DOUGLAS COUNTY, NV

Rec:\$40.00 Total:\$40.00 RICHARD ROWE

2024-1009651 07/02/2024 09:23 AM

Pgs=3



APN#	
Recording Requested by/Mail to:	SHAWNYNE GARREN, RECORDE
Name: Efix Point Country Club Homeowners Association, Inc. dio Clarkson McAlonis & O'Connor, P.C.	\ \
Address: 1210 S. Valley View Dr. Suite 202	\ \
City/State/Zip: Las Vegas, NV 89102	
Mail Tax Statements to:	
Name:	
Address:	
City/State/Zip:	

Amended Bylaws of Elk Point Country Club Homeowners' Association, Inc.

# Title of Document (required)

#### Please complete the Affirmation Statement below:

The undersigned hereby affirms that the document submitted for recording	
DOES contain personal information as required by law: (check applicable)	
Affidavit of Death – NRS 440.380 (1)(A) & NRS 40.525 (5) Military Discharge – NRS 419.020 (	2)
Other NRS (state specific law)	
-OR-	
$m{\ell}$ I the undersigned hereby affirm the attached document, including any exhibits, hereby submitte	be
for recording does NOT contain the personal information of any person(s). (Per NRS 239B.030)	
L.	

Signature

Matthew McAlonis, Esq.

**Printed Name** 

This document is being (re-)recorded to correct document # $0653319$	, and is correcting
The amendment is modifying Article XVII, Section 1.	5

By Can Fileing

#### APN:

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

ELK POINT COUNTRY CLUB HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. c/o CLARKSON MCALONIS & O' CONNOR P.C. 1210 S. Valley Drive, Suite 202 Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

# AMENDED BYLAWS OF ELK POINT COUNTRY CLUB HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC. DATED MAY 18, 2024

The Amended Bylaws of the Elk Point Country Club, Inc. adopted May 18, 2024, is made by the ELK POINT COUNTRY CLUB HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC., a Nevada non-profit corporation formed under the provisions of Chapters 81 and 116 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (the "Association") and in accordance with Article XXIV of the Association's Bylaws.

#### RECITALS:

- A. WHEREAS, the Board of Directors is authorized under Nevada law and the Bylaws of the Elk Point Country Club Homeowners' Association, Inc., and the various amendments related to ("Bylaws") to conduct, manage, and control the affairs and business of Elk Point Country Club Homeowners' Association, Inc. ("Association") pursuant to NRS §§ 116.3102, 116.3106; and Bylaws, Article III, §§ 2, 3;
- B. Article XXIV Section provides: "[T]hese Bylaws may be amended except as otherwise provided, by a two-thirds majority vote of all the Unit Owners present in person or by proxy at any regularly called meeting of Unit Owners, provided, however, that written notice of the proposed changes shall have been given to each Unit Owner in the same manner and for the same time as notice for the meeting is required by these Bylaws.
- C. In accordance with Nevada law the requisite number of Unit Owners requested that a special meeting be held to vote upon a proposed amendment to the Association's Bylaws and pursuant to Nevada law that special meeting of the Association's Unit Owners was held on May 18, 2024.
- D. At the special meeting held on May 18, 2024, in accordance with the Association's Bylaws the requisite number of Unit Owners voted to amend Article XVII Section 1 of the Elk Point Country Club Homeowners' Association, Inc.'s Bylaws.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED AND APPROVED BY TWO-THIRDS OF THE ASSOCIATION'S UNIT OWNERS the proposed amendment to Article XVII Section 1 of the Bylaws of the Elk Point Country Club Homeowners' Association, Inc. The requisite number of Unit Owners approved the Bylaws Amendment

at the special meeting held on May 18, 2024. The operative and amended version of the Association's Bylaws are attached hereto as **Exhibit 1**.

#### CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

Article XXIV of the Bylaws provides that a copy of an amendment shall be certified, signed, and acknowledged by the Association's President and Secretary certifying that that the amendment was approved by the two-thirds of the Association's Unit Owners.

NOW THEREFORE, The Officers of the Association, by signing below, swear that the requisite number of Unit Owners have affirmatively voted and/or affirmatively consented in writing to adopt the Amendment to the Bylaws of Elk Point Country Club Homeowners' Association, Inc. as provided above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Association has executed this Amendment as of the date set forth above. ELK POINT COUNTRY CLUB HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC., a Nevada non-profit corporation

By: Kichard C. Rowe (print)	
De la Carre Giorit	_
President	
TATE OF NEVADA )	
\ \ \ )	
OUNTY OF DOUGLAS )	
- \ \ \ ch	
This instrument was acknowledged and sworn to before me on this day of	
une, 2024 by Richard C. Kwe (print) as President of	
ne ELK POINT COUNTRY CLUB HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC. a Nevada	
on-profit corporation.	
Dena Reed ()M / Dena Reed	
Notary Public - State of Nevada NOTARY PUBLIC	
Annointment masseled in Deviate County :	

03-80676-5 - Expires: March 14, 2027

Exhibit 1

# BYLAWS OF ELK POINT COUNTRY CLUB HOMEOWNERS'

# ASSOCIATION INCORPORATED

#### Preamble

The Elk Point Country Club Homeowners' Association, Inc., is a common-interest development operating as a Nevada non-profit corporation, hereinafter called Elk Point Country Club, Inc, EPCC Association or Corporation, and in operating compliance with Nevada law. Its primary purpose is hereby affirmed to be to provide its Unit Owners the pleasure of fellowship and recreation, and its corporate functioning shall be designed to civilly achieve in highest measure such purpose. It shall not operate its properties or facilities with the view of providing profit to its Unit Owners but rather such properties and facilities shall be held, operated, and made available for the use and enjoyment of its Unit Owners upon payment of such assessments and charges as will fairly meet its cost of operation and provide a reasonable accumulation of funds for repairs, replacements and additions.

# **ARTICLE 1**

# **MEETINGS OF UNIT OWNERS**

Section 1. All meetings of the Unit Owners shall be held on the property of Elk Point Country Club, Inc., Lake Tahoe, Nevada.

Section 2. A majority of the Unit Owners in good standing as shown on the Official Unit Owners' Roster in person or by proxy shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at all Unit Owners' meetings.

## Section 3.

- a) The annual meeting of the Unit Owners shall be held at Elk Point Country Club, Inc. on the first Saturday of July of each year at the hour of 10:00 a.m. thereof.
- b) At such annual meeting each Unit's Owner, as defined in NRS 116.095, in good standing shall be entitled to one vote per unit in person or by proxy.
- c) At such meetings, the Unit Owners shall elect the candidates who receive the most votes to the open seats on the Executive Board by using secret written ballots. Eligible candidates are qualified and not suspended Unit Owners as defined by the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws. The written ballots will be counted in public by three Unit Owners appointed by the Executive Board.
  - d) A copy of minutes of all meetings shall be mailed at no charge to each Unit's Owner.
- e) Each candidate must comply with the requirements of NRS 116.31034 (5) by submitting the candidate's disclosure to the association secretary for inclusion with the ballot. If the candidate is unable to meet the secretary's schedule the candidate must deliver the disclosure to each Unit's Owner by first class US mail, Federal Express, United Parcel, or by hand at least 15 days prior to the annual meeting at the candidate's own expense. The candidate may submit a statement of 150 words or less regarding the candidacy to the secretary for inclusion with the ballot. Failure to comply with the mandatory requirements of this Section makes the candidate ineligible for serving on the Executive Board.

For additional requirements of the election process see:

NRS 116.31034 Election of members of executive board and officers of association; term of office of member of executive board; staggered terms; eligibility to serve on executive board; required disclosures; procedure for conducting elections; certification by member of executive board of understanding of governing documents and provisions of chapter.

NRS 116.3109 Quorum;

For requirements of unit's owners meeting See:

NRS 116.3108 Meetings of units' owners of association; frequency of meetings, requirements concerning notice and agendas; dissemination of schedule of fines; requirements concerning minutes of meetings; right of units' owners to make audio recordings of meetings.

#### Section 4.

- a) At any meeting of the Unit Owners, a quorum is 51% of the Unit Owners in good standing as described in Article XX, present in person or by proxy.
- b) A majority of the Unit Owners present in person or by proxy at any meeting representing a quorum can conduct Association business.

<u>Section 5.</u> At all meetings of the members, the order, of business shall be as follows:

- (a) Calling of roll;
- (b) Proof of notice of meeting;
- (c) Approving of Minutes of previous meeting;
- (d) Right of Unit Owners to speak;
- (e) Reports of Directors and Officers;
- (f) Election of Directors;
- (g) Miscellaneous Business.

Section 6. At each meeting of the Association, the President or Board member conducting the meeting shall follow all procedural rules contained in NRS 116, procedural rules contained in the Association Bylaws and generally follow Robert's Rules of Order, to the extent practicable.

For the rights of Unit's Owners to speak at a meeting see:

NRS 116.31085 Right of units' owners to speak at certain meetings; limitations on right; limitations on power of executive board to meet in executive session; procedure governing hearings on alleged violations; requirements concerning minutes of certain meetings.

See:

NRS 116.311 Voting by units' owners; use of proxies; voting by lessees of leased units; association prohibited from voting as owner of unit.

#### **ARTICLE II**

#### **EXECUTIVE BOARD**

- Section 1. The Executive Board shall constitute the ruling and governing body of the Corporation. It shall apply all rules regulating the affairs and conduct of the Corporation, subject in each case to the provisions of these Bylaws the Articles of Incorporation and subject to the laws of the State of Nevada.
- Section 2. Qualification for Executive Board Members: An Executive Board Member must be a Unit Owner of the Corporation in good standing for two years prior to election to office. If any Executive Board member shall cease to be a Unit Owner or fail to continue to be a Unit Owner in good standing, the office of that Executive Board member shall be deemed to be vacant.
- Section 3. To avoid conflicts of interest, The Executive Board shall consist of five persons who are unrelated by blood or marriage and do not share a common ownership interest in a unit. They shall fill the terms of office as follows: Beginning with the elections scheduled in July 1991 and thereafter, three (3) Executive Board members shall be elected on even numbered years for two (2) year terms

each, and two (2) Executive Board members shall be elected on odd numbered years for two (2) year terms each.

#### See:

NRS 116.31034 Election of members of executive board and officers of association; term of office of member of executive board; staggered terms; eligibility to serve on executive board; required disclosures; procedure for conducting elections; certification by member of executive board of understanding of governing documents and provisions of chapter.

- Section 4. The Executive Board shall meet at such time at the office of the Corporation, or at such other convenient place upon the Corporation property. A meeting of the Board shall be held immediately succeeding every annual meeting of the Unit Owners of the Corporation.
- Section 5. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held when called by the President, or when requested by a majority of the Executive Board.

## See:

NRS 116.31083 Meetings of executive board; frequency of meetings; requirements concerning notice and agendas; periodic review of certain financial and legal matters at meetings; requirements concerning minutes of meetings; right of units' owners to make audio recordings of certain meetings.

#### Section 6.

- a) The Executive Board may have an office on the premises of the Corporation.
- b) Access to the records shall be allowed upon ten (10) days written notice, during normal

business hours.

See:

NRS 116.31175 Maintenance and availability of books, records and other papers of association: General requirements; exceptions; general records concerning certain violations; enforcement by Ombudsman; limitations on amount that may be charged to conduct review.

NRS 116.31177 Maintenance and availability of certain financial records of association; provision of copies to units' owners and Ombudsman.

NRS 117.3118 Maintenance and availability of certain financial records necessary to provide information required for resale of units; right of units' owners to inspect, examine, photocopy and audit records of association.

- Section 7. A quorum shall be deemed present throughout any Executive Board meeting if persons entitled to cast 50% of the votes on that Board are present throughout the meeting. See NRS 116.3109. {p59}
- Section 8. Any notice required to be given by this Article may be waived by the party to whom such notice is required to be given, provided such waiver is in writing, duly signed either before, at, or after the meeting. The waiver shall be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation.
- Section 9. The Executive Board of the Association shall designate an Executive Board member nominating committee for the following year's Executive Board election at their second meeting. The Committee shall be made up of three Unit Owners in good standing. The Committee will be charged with the responsibility of identifying, confirming interest, and placing in nomination a list of recommended Executive Board nominees. The Committee will present the nominees to the Executive Board. For information. No Committee member may be an Executive Board member.

See:

NRS 116.31034 regarding nominations.

#### **ARTICLE III**

## **POWERS OF EXECUTIVE BOARD**

- Section 1. The Executive Board shall have power to appoint and remove at pleasure, all officers, agents and employees of the Corporation, prescribe their duties, fix their compensation and require from them security for faithful services.
  - Section 2. The Executive Board shall have power to conduct, manage and control the

affairs and business of the Corporation and to make rules and regulations not inconsistent with the laws of the State of Nevada, the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Corporation.

- Section 3. The Executive Board shall have power to incur indebtedness, except as limited by Article IV of these Bylaws, the terms and amounts of which shall be entered upon the Minutes of the Executive Board meeting, and the note or writing given for the same shall be signed officially by the Officer or Officers authorized by the Executive Board.
- Section 4. The Executive Board may not increase or decrease the number of members of the Executive Board.

#### For rules requirements see:

NRS 116.31065 Rules.

NRS 116.31031 Power of executive board to impose fines and other sanctions for violations of governing documents; procedural requirements; continuing violations; collection of past due fines.

NRS 116.310305 Power of executive board to impose construction penalties for failure of unit's owner to adhere to certain schedules relating to design, construction, occupancy or use of unit or improvement.

# ARTICLE IV

## **LIMITATIONS OF POWERS**

- Section 1. The enumeration of the powers and duties of the Executive Board in these Bylaws shall not be construed to exclude all or any of the powers and duties, except insofar as the same are expressly prohibited or restricted by the provisions of these Bylaws or Articles of Incorporation, and the Board shall have and exercise all other powers and perform all such duties as may be granted by the laws of the State of Nevada and do not conflict with the provisions of these Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation.
- Section 2. The Executive Board shall not borrow money or incur any indebtedness in excess of the annual budget amounts approved by a majority vote of the Unit Owners first had at a regularly called annual or special meeting of the Unit Owners.
- Section 3. The Executive Board can enter into any contract, the performance of which would require up to thirty-six (36) months that does not encumber real property. Unit Owners, by majority vote at a duly call Unit Owners' meeting, voting in person or by proxy, may direct the Board to approve and authorize contracts for longer terms that does not encumber real property.
- Section 4. The Executive Board shall not sell, convey, or encumber any of the real property of the Corporation without the unanimous consent of the total Unit Owners first obtained. Nothing herein, however, shall preclude the Board of Directors from leasing Club beach property to The Elk Point Yacht Club, Incorporated, A non-profit Corporation, composed of and restricted

to Elk Point Country Club members for the construction of a boating facility only. (Note: Amendment of this section is restricted. See Article XXIV, Section 1.)

Section 5. The compensation of all employees and of all Officers of the Corporation, other than the Executive Board, shall be fixed and determined by the Executive Board as herein provided.

See:

NRS 116.3112 Conveyance or encumbrance of common elements.

NRS 116.31036 Removal of member of executive board; indemnification and defense of member of executive board.

# **ARTICLE V**

#### **DUTIES OF EXECUTIVE BOARD**

Section 1. It shall be the duty of the Executive Board:

- a) To cause to be kept a complete record of all the accounts and the proceedings of the Unit Owners and to present a full statement thereof at the annual meeting of the Unit Owners, showing in detail the receipts and disbursements and the assets and liabilities of the Corporation, and generally the condition of its affairs, a similar statement shall be presented at any meeting of the Unit Owners when thereby requested by one-third of the unit owners identified on the Official Unit Owners' Roster.
- b) To supervise all officers, agents, the caretaker and employees and see that their duties are properly performed.
- c) To cause to be kept the Official Unit Owners' Roster and to add new Unit Owners to the Roster upon admission to the Association.
  - d) To approve the employment of a caretaker.
- e) To issue to the caretaker each month, or following each meeting of the Executive Board, orders setting forth a monthly schedule of work to be performed by the caretaker in the ensuing month.
- f) The Executive Board may, at its discretion, or at the request of a Unit Owner appoint a Financial Review Committee. This Committee will be charged with conducting an independent review of the financial condition of the Corporation. The report will be submitted to the Executive Board. The report shall be completed during the month of April and be submitted to the Executive Board at the first scheduled meeting of the Executive Board during the month of May. If the review requested by a Unit Owner is initiated and reported on, then a copy of the report

shall be transmitted with the Annual Meeting Package for discussion at the Annual Unit Owner's Meeting.

- g) To adopt as necessary, rules for the conduct and government of the Unit Owners, their guests and tenants, in connection with the exercise of their privileges as Unit Owners, tenants and guests and their use of the Corporation property, and cause the same to be published and mailed to each Unit Owner at the address of the Unit Owner as the same appears upon the records of the Corporation. The rules shall be consistent with NRS 116.31065, or any amendments thereto. It shall be each Unit Owner's responsibility to require guests and tenants to obey said rules.
- h) The Executive Board shall formally review the status of the Asset Reserve account at its regular scheduled Board meetings and prior to finalizing the annual budget/related assessments. The Treasurer shall be responsible for the coordination of this activity and the associated contractor assessment report. All capital assets whose useful lives will expire within the next five years will be discussed to ensure adequate funding and plans are in place for their maintenance or replacement. The Board shall document appropriate financial/operational plans to ensure compliance with the 5-year asset management reserve plan as documented by the contracted assessment agency. These plans shall be appropriately communicated to the association.

#### See:

NRS 116.3103 Duty of executive board to act on behalf of association; adoption and ratification of budget.

NRS 116.31183 Retaliatory action prohibited.

#### **ARTICLE VI**

#### **OFFICERS**

- Section 1. The Officers of the Corporation shall be a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. No Offices shall be consolidated. The Executive Board shall, at their first regular meeting, elect from its members a President, Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer.
- Section 2. No Executive Board member may act in the capacity of more than one officer position for any transaction or series or related transactions.
- <u>Section 3</u>. The Treasurer and any other Officers with authority to disburse funds of the Corporation shall be bonded for an amount determined by the Executive Board. Each such bond shall be not less than \$2,000.00.

#### **ARTICLE VII**

#### **PRESIDENT**

Section 1. The President shall be the chief officer of the Corporation and shall, subject to the control of the Executive Board, have general supervision, direction and control of the business and officers of the Corporation. If at any time the President shall be unable to act, the Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform such duties, and, in case of the inability of the Vice President to act, the Executive Board shall appoint a member of the Board to do so, and such member shall be vested for the interim period with all powers and shall discharge and perform all duties and functions of the office.

## Section 2. The duties of the President shall be;

- a) To preside over all meetings of the Unit Owners and Executive Board.
- b) To sign, as President, all contracts and other instruments in writing which have been approved first by the Executive Board.
- c) To call the Executive Board together whenever the President shall deem it necessary; and to have, subject to the advice of the Executive Board, charge of all affairs of the Corporation, and generally to discharge such other duties as may be required of the President by the Bylaws of the Corporation.

## **ARTICLE VIII**

# **VICE PRESIDENT**

Section 1. The Vice President shall be vested with the powers and shall perform all of the duties of the President in the absence of the President and at other times shall have authority and shall perform such duties as the Executive Board may prescribe.

#### **ARTICLE IX**

#### **SECRETARY**

Section 1. The Secretary shall give all required notice of all meetings of the Unit Owners and meetings of the Executive Board, keep minutes of all the meetings of Unit Owners and the Executive Board, keep and update the Official Unit Owners' Roster, countersign contracts, and other instruments in writing requiring the signature of the President, be custodian of the seal and attach the same to all documents and instruments requiring the seal, and in general, perform all acts incident to the office of Secretary.

#### See:

#### NRS 116.3108 regarding meeting minutes.

Section 2. Written remarks prepared and submitted for inclusion in the minutes of the Executive Board or minutes of the Unit Owners by a Unit Owner must:

- a. Be legible, preferably type written;
- b. NOT contain any information critical, disparaging, or discourteous toward any other EPCC Unit Owner, group of Unit Owners or Board member(s).
- c. Be short and to the point.
- Section 3. It shall be the primary responsibility of the Secretary to review all material, remarks, or other information to be included or attached to the minutes keeping in mind Section 2 (b) of this Article. The Secretary may bring any questionable materials, remarks, or other information to be included in the minutes to the attention of the Board for direction.

## **ARTICLE X**

#### **TREASURER**

- Section 1. The Treasurer shall receive all monies and funds of the Corporation and shall deposit the same in such depository or depositories as from time to time may be selected by the Executive Board.
- Section 2. The Treasurer shall perform all other duties respecting monies, funds, securities and property of the Corporation which the Treasurer may receive, or which may be confided to the care of the Treasurer as the Executive Board may from time to time prescribe or direct.
- Section 3. The Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the Corporation as may be ordered by the Executive Board or by an authorized Officer of the Corporation, only upon proper vouchers for such disbursements and as required by Article XIV of these Bylaws.
- Section 4. The Treasurer shall render to the President and Executive Board at regular meetings of the Board, or whenever they may require it, an account of all actions as Treasurer, and of the financial condition of the Corporation.
- Section 5. The Treasurer shall submit to the Executive Board an annual statement showing in detail all receipts and disbursements at the first scheduled meeting of the Executive Board during the month of May.

#### ARTICLE XI

#### **VACANCIES**

Section 1. If the office of any Executive Board member or of any appointed official of the Corporation shall become vacant for any cause, the remaining Executive Board members, if more than a quorum, may elect a successor or successors who shall hold office for the unexpired term, and in the event there is less than a quorum, the remaining Executive Board members shall call a special meeting of the Unit Owners to fill the vacancies.

#### **ARTICLE XII**

#### **VALIDATION OF INFORMAL ACTS**

Section 1. Any act of a majority of the Executive Board, although not had at a regularly called meeting, and the records thereof, if attested to in writing by all the other members of the Board, shall be as valid and effective in all respects as if passed by the Board in regular meeting.

Section 2. Whenever all Unit Owners entitled to vote at any meeting, whether of Executive Board or of Unit Owners, consent either by writing signed on the records of the meeting, or filed with the Secretary, or by presence at such meeting, and oral consent entered on the Minutes, or by taking part in the deliberations at such meeting without objections, all acts of such meeting shall be as valid as if had at a meeting regularly called and noticed and at such meeting any business may be transacted which is not excepted from the written consent, or to the consideration of which no objection for want of notice is made at the time, and if any meeting is irregular for want of notice, or of such consent, and a quorum is present at such meeting, the proceedings of such meeting may be ratified and approved and rendered valid, and the irregularity or defect waived by a written consent by all members having a right to vote at such meeting, or by a majority vote at any subsequent legally convened meeting, and such consent or approval of Unit Owners may be by proxy or by power of attorney, in writing.

#### ARTICLE XIII

#### **CORPORATE SEAL**

Section 1. The Corporation shall have a seal upon which shall appear the Corporate name and date when incorporated, which date shall be the date of the issuance of the original certificate of the Secretary of State, and such other designs as the Executive Board may determine.

#### **ARTICLE XIV**

#### **DEPOSIT AND DISPOSITION OF FUNDS**

Section 1. The Executive Board is authorized to select such depositories as it shall deem proper for the needs of the Corporation. Funds from the Corporation's accounts may be withdrawn only with the signature of at least two members of the Executive Board or one member of the Executive Board and a Community Manager as defined under NRS, Chapter 116 and designated by the Executive Board.

Money may be withdrawn from the operating account without the signatures provided for above in accordance with the terms of NRS 116.31153 (3) & (4).

See: NRS 116.31153 Signatures required for withdrawals of certain association funds; exceptions.

See:

# NRS 116.31153 Signatures required for withdrawals from reserve account of association.

#### **ARTICLE XV**

#### **UNIT OWNERS**

- Section 1. No owner of property at Elk Point shall be eligible for membership in this Corporation whose application for membership has not been submitted to the Executive Board and favorably passed upon by a majority vote of Executive Board at any regular or special meeting thereof.
- Section 2. Any Owner of property at Elk Point may apply for membership in the Association by application to the Executive Board on a form to be made available by the Executive Board. If a Unit Owner desires to transfer the membership to any such applicant, such Unit Owner shall join in the application and request that the membership be so transferred to such applicant. If such Unit Owner desires to transfer membership to such applicant only one or more of several lots owned by the Unit Owner, but would still retain one or more lots, then such Unit Owner shall join in the application and request permission to transfer membership in such lot or lots proposed to be sold. A copy of the proposed deed or deeds shall be annexed to each application.
- Section 3. Upon the sale or transfer of a unit, upon the date the deed is recorded effecting the transfer or sale, all property rights of the grantor or transferor for that unit shall terminate and shall vest in the new Unit Owner.
- Section 4. The transfer fee for new Unit Owners shall be \$20,000, which said sum should accompany all applications for membership. In the event the application is rejected, the transfer fee shall be returned to the applicant. The Executive Board shall have the right, if the Asset Reserve account is fully funded, to allocate initiation fees to either the General Fund or Asset Reserve Account of the Association as may financially be appropriate. The total transfer fee collected in one fiscal year shall be deducted the following year from the contributions that would have been made to the Reserve Account should all of the transfer fees be applied to the Reserve Account.
- Section 5. Any Unit Owner who wishes the Secretary to change the Official Unit Owners' Roster to show the recorded Unit Ownership interest in any unit may do so upon presenting a record stamped copy of the deed to the Secretary.
- Section 6. No initiation fee shall be required for any change in the Official Unit Owners' Roster as provided in Section 6, unless the change is from an existing Unit Owner to a new Unit Owner.
  - Section 7. There shall be one class of membership, limited to natural persons.

See:

NRS 116.4109 Resale of units.

#### NRS 116.41095 Required form of information statement.

## ARTICLE XVI

## **PROPERTY RIGHT OF UNIT OWNERS**

- Section 1. No Unit shall transfer membership without the prior approval of an application for membership in the Association by a majority of the Executive Board by appropriate action at any regular or special meeting thereof.
- Section 2. The property of Unit Owners shall be used for single family residential purposes only.
- Section 3. No structure of any kind shall be erected or permitted upon the premises of any Unit Owner, unless the plans and specifications shall have first been submitted to and approved by the Executive Board. No tent, house trailer, motor home, camper, or similar housing, permanent or temporary, shall be permitted within the premises and real property of the Corporation at any time under any circumstances, except for loading and unloading.
- Section 4. No Unit Owner, either individually, or in the name of a family trust, spouse, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited partnership or retirement plan, shall own more than three (3) lots at the same time.
- Section 5. The grantee or grantees of any property and premises, and the property and the premises within the tract of the Corporation, shall be subject at all times to the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, rules and regulations of the Corporation which shall in turn bind every subsequent grantee, the executors, administrators, successors and or assigns of such grantee.

#### ARTICLE XVII

#### ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS

- Section 1. Assessments shall be made against each Unit Owner. A Unit Owner is defined as the Owner of a lot as shown on the Elks Subdivision Map plat recorded in the Douglas County Assessor's Map Book originally on May 5, 1927, at Book 1 of Maps, as amended in 1952, including all lots from the original/amended map that are legally consolidated/merged, legally subdivided or have had legal lot line adjustments within the ordinances governing Douglas County, Nevada. These lots as described are considered a single lot for assessment purposes.
- Section 2. Maintenance, repair, restoration or replacement of limited common use elements that are used by less than all the Unit Owners, will be assessed against only those Unit Owners benefitting from their usage.
- Section 3. The annual assessment shall cover a period of time extending from July 1st to June 30th of the following year and shall be due and payable on August 10th of each year and

shall become delinquent on November 10th of that particular year. The Board may establish an interest rate charge on delinquent accounts by Board action at a properly noticed meeting.

Section 4. Special Assessments covering unforeseen emergencies which affect the health, safety and welfare of the Association, and occur between annual budgets, can be authorized by the Executive Board. One or more Special Assessments cannot exceed \$100 per Unit Owner, per year (not to exceed \$10,000 aggregate to the Association). All special assessments to the Unit Owners shall be on a per Unit Ownership (per lot) basis.

#### See:

NRS 116.3115 Assessments for common expenses; notice of meeting required if assessment for capital improvement or commencement of certain civil actions are to be considered; requirements for commencement of certain civil actions by association; request for dismissal of civil action.

NRS 116.31151 Annual distribution to units' owners of operating and reserve budgets or summaries of such budgets.

NRS 116.31152 Study of reserves; duties of executive board regarding study; qualifications of

person who conducts study; contents of study; submission of study to Commission; regulations

regarding study; use of money credited against residential construction tax for upkeep of park facilities and related improvements identified in study.

# ARTICLE XVIII

# **LIENS UPON UNIT OWNERS**

See:

NRS 116.3116 Liens against units for assessments.

NRS 116.31162 Foreclosure of liens: Mailing of notice of delinquent assessment; recording of

notice of default and election to sell; period during which unit's owner may pay lien to avoid foreclosure; limitations on type of lien that may be foreclosed.

NRS 116.31163 Foreclosure of liens: Mailing of notice of default and election to sell to certain interested persons.

NRS 116.311635 Foreclosure of liens: Providing notice of time and place of sale.

NRS 116.31164 Foreclosure of liens: Procedure for conducting sale; purchase of unit by association; execution and delivery of deed; use of proceeds of sale.

NRS 116.31166 Foreclosure of liens: Effect of recitals in deed; purchaser not responsible for proper application of purchase money; title vested in purchaser without equity or right of redemption.

NRS 116.31168 Foreclosure of liens: Requests by interested persons for notice of default and election to sell; right of association to waive default and withdraw notice or proceeding to foreclose.

#### **ARTICLE XIX**

#### **TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP**

Section 1. Membership in the Association shall be terminated by transfer of the last lot owned by a Unit Owner. The transfer of membership shall be effective except upon the approval of an application for membership by the Executive Board as set forth in these Bylaws. Membership obligations shall continue against the new recorded owner and shall continue to be a lien upon said lot or lots. A former Unit Owner, whose membership has been terminated as provided in these Bylaws, immediately forfeits all rights of membership in the Association.

## ARTICLE XX

#### **PENALTIES**

- Section 1. By action of the Executive Board, the Unit Owner's rights shall be suspended for any of the following causes:
  - a) Violation of or failure by any Unit Owner or the tenant or guests, of the Unit Owner to comply with any Corporation Bylaw, Article of Incorporation, or any of the rules and regulations promulgated by the Executive Board, after due notice and hearing by the Executive Board.
  - b) Failure, for three months, to pay assessments owing the Corporation.
- Section 2. The Executive Board is granted the authority to take any and all suspension actions authorized by the statutory provisions of NRS 116.31031 and shall comply with the procedural requirements for their implementation. Common elements of the association shall include marina facilities and reserved beach deck use. Voting privileges on all association matters shall be denied during the period of the suspension and assessments/interest due on delinquent payments shall continue during the suspension.
- Section 3. Any Unit Owner so suspended may be reinstated, by a majority vote of the Executive Board, after completion of remedy imposed by the Executive Board.
- Section 4. The prevailing party to any arbitration, administrative proceeding or litigation between Elk Point Country Club, Inc., its agents, directors, or employees and any unit owner or owners, is entitled to reimbursement of attorney's fees and costs from the other party or parties. Administrative proceeding is defined to include, but is not limited to, any proceeding

before any governmental entity, including the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, Douglas County or any state or local agency.

If any unit owner is liable for attorney's fees or costs pursuant to this section, the debt may be enforced as an assessment against their unit.

See:

NRS 116.31031 Power of executive board to impose fines and other sanctions for violations of governing documents; procedural requirements; continuing violations; collection of past due fines.

#### **ARTICLE XXI**

### PROPERTY RIGHTS ON UNIT OWNER DEATH

Section 1. Upon the death of a Unit Owner, all provisions of these Bylaws shall apply to the heirs, devisees and personal representatives of the deceased Unit Owner. Should title to any lot or lots of the deceased Unit Owner vest in any heir or heirs, devisee or devisees, of said Unit Owner either by operation of law or decree of distribution, then such heir or heirs, devisee or devisees shall be admitted to this Corporation upon application to and approval by the Executive Board and no initiation fee shall be charged the heir, devisee or personal representatives of any deceased member, and the title of such heir or heirs, devisee or devisees, to the lot or lots of said deceased member shall be recognized by this Corporation; upon the condition, however, that said heir or heirs, devisee or devisees, shall in all respects be bound by and shall adhere to the Bylaws, rules and regulations of this Corporation, including those pertaining to any sale of said lot or lots. Any sale of said lot or lots by any personal representative of a deceased Unit Owner shall not be valid until the purchaser or contemplated purchaser shall be approved by the Executive Board of this Corporation as provided in these Bylaws.

**ARTICLE XXII** 

DISSOLUTION

See:

NRS 116.2118 Termination of common-interest community.

## **ARTICLE XXIII**

#### **FISCAL YEAR**

Section 1. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin with the first day of July and extend to the 30th day of June, both days, inclusive, unless otherwise provided by the resolution of the Executive Board.

## **ARTICLE XXIV**

#### **AMENDMENTS**

Section 1. These Bylaws may be amended except as otherwise provided, by a two-thirds majority vote of all the Unit Owners present in person or by proxy at any regularly called meeting of Unit Owners, provided, however, that written notice of the proposed changes shall have been given to each Unit Owner in the same manner and for the same time as notice for the meeting is required by these Bylaws. Neither Article XXIV nor Article IV Section 4 shall be amended without the unanimous consent of all Unit Owners.

#### See:

NRS 116.3108 Meetings of units' owners of association; frequency of meetings, requirements concerning notice and agendas; dissemination of schedule of fines; requirements concerning minutes of meetings; right of units' owners to make audio recordings of meetings. Section 3. Para a.

NRS 116.12065 Notice of changes to governing documents.

# ARTICLE XXV

# **CARETAKER**

Section 1. A caretaker shall be employed by the Executive Board upon terms and conditions to be fixed and approved by the Executive Board. Said caretaker shall be directly responsible to the Executive Board. No caretaker shall be retained by a contract for services in excess of one year.

Section 2. The Caretaker shall reside on the premises throughout the year.

#### **ARTICLE XXVI**

#### **EFFECTIVE DATE OF AMENDMENT**

Section 1. These Amended and Restated Bylaws shall be effective upon approval in accordance with ARTICLE XXIV of these bylaws and NRS 116.3108 subsection 3 (a) at a Unit's Owners Meeting and shall be effective only when recorded in the official records of Douglas County, Nevada. These Bylaws shall supersede and shall prevail if in conflict with previous Bylaws or Amendments notwithstanding previous recordation or appearance in member meeting minutes. The Association is responsible for any damages a Unit's Owner suffers because these bylaws were not recorded within thirty (30) days from the date of approval.

I certify this copy of the Amended Bylaws is accurate and current based upon the recent amendment to the Elk Point Country Club Homeowners Association's Bylaws.

Dated this <u></u> day of July 2024.